
All times are approximate. The Chair reserves the right to set the order of the agenda. For any item on the agenda, the 

Committee may vote to go into executive session as permitted by Arizona Code of Judicial Administration § 1-202. 

Please contact Kay L. Radwanski, staff to the Committee on the Impact of Domestic Violence and the Courts, at 

(602) 452-3360, with any questions concerning this agenda. Persons with a disability may request a reasonable 

accommodation, such as auxiliary aids or materials in alternative formats, by contacting Julie Graber at (602) 452-

3250. Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange for the accommodation. 

COMMITTEE ON THE IMPACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND THE COURTS 
Tuesday, May 12, 2015 – 10:00 a.m. 

Arizona State Courts Building, 1501 W. Washington – Conference Room 119 A/B 
Conference Call:   602-452-3288   Access Code:  0348# 

WebEx Link       CIDVC Home Page 

AGENDA 

10:00 a.m. Call to Order/ Welcome and Introductions Honorable Wendy Million 

Tucson City Court 

Approval of Minutes – February 10, 2015 
 Formal Action/Request 

10:05 a.m. Creating Accessibility for Survivors of Abuse Anna Harper-Guerrero 

Who Are Deaf Emerge! Center Against Domestic Abuse

10:25 a.m. Legislative Report; Kay Radwanski, AOC 

SB1035:  Domestic Violence Offender Treatment Programs 

10:30 a.m. Comment to Rule 28 Petitions Judge Million 

 Formal Action/Request 

10:40 a.m. Report:  NICS Task Force Meeting Chief Steven Campbell 

Kay Radwanski 

10:55 a.m. Update:  Bench Briefings Judge Million 

Kay Radwanski 

11:05 a.m. Workgroup Reports: 
 Orders, Enforcement and Access Judge Carol Scott Berry 

 Training and Education Judge Keith Barth 

Announcements/Call to the Public Judge Million 

Adjournment Judge Million

Next Meeting:  September 15, 2015 - 10:00 a.m. 
Arizona State Courts Building, Conference Room 119 A/B 

Remaining 2015 Meeting Dates:  September 15, November 17 

Page 1 of 33

* Pg. 3

* Pg. 9

* Pg. 11

* Pg. 23

* Pg. 29

* Pg. 31

* Pg. 33

https://arizonacourts.webex.com/arizonacourts/j.php?MTID=m424cf3058a4b3d742fbbd457c0b26494
http://www.azcourts.gov/cscommittees/CommitteeontheImpactofDVandtheCourts.aspx


Page 2 of 33



Draft Minutes from the February 10, 2015 Meeting  1 

COMMITTEE ON THE IMPACT OF  
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND THE COURTS 

Draft Minutes 
February 10, 2015 

Arizona State Courts Building 
Conference Room 119A/B 

1501 W. Washington Street, Phoenix, AZ 85007 
 

  
Present: Judge Wendy Million (chair), Judge Keith D. Barth, Judge Carol Scott Berry, Carla F. 
Boatner, Ellen R. Brown, Chief Steven W. Campbell, Joi Davenport, Patricia George, Dorothy 
Hastings, Judge Statia D. Hendrix, Patricia Madsen, Dana Martinez, Captain Jeffrey Newnum, 
Judge Wyatt J. Palmer, Marla Randall, Assistant Chief Sandra Renteria, Shannon Rich, Rebecca 
Strickland, Tracey J. Wilkinson 
Telephonic: Lynn Fazz 
Absent/Excused: Gloria E. Full, Anna Harper-Guerrero, Judge Patricia A. Trebesch 
Presenters/Guests: Anthony Coulson (ACJC), Mark Peoples (ACJC), Amy St. Peter (MAG) 
AOC Committee Staff: Kay Radwanski, Julie Graber 

 
 
I. REGULAR BUSINESS 

A. Welcome and Opening Remarks 
The February 10, 2015, meeting of the Committee on the Impact of Domestic Violence 
and the Courts was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by Judge Wendy Million, Chair. Judge 
Million welcomed existing members and introduced a new member, Patricia George, 
Assistant City Prosecutor with the City of Phoenix Prosecutor’s Office. Judge Million 
also congratulated Judge Carol Scott Berry for her induction into the Council on Legal 
Education Opportunity’s Hall of Fame.  
 
B. Approval of Minutes 
The draft minutes from the November 18, 2014, meeting of the Committee on the Impact 
of Domestic Violence and the Courts were presented for approval. 
 
Motion: To approve the November 18, 2014, meeting minutes, as presented. Action: 
Approve, Moved by Judge Wyatt Palmer, Seconded by Judge Keith Barth. Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS 
 
A. Domestic Violence and Order of Protection Process for NICS Reporting of 

Prohibited Possessors 
Anthony Coulson, Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) consultant, and Marc 
Peoples, ACJC program manager for Arizona NICS reporting, reviewed the role of the 
Arizona NICS Task Force, the type of information collected and reported to NICS and 
other repositories, and the categories that disqualify an individual from purchasing a 
firearm. Mr. Coulson identified current challenges to collecting and reporting prohibited 

Page 3 of 33



Draft Minutes from the February 10, 2015 Meeting  2 

possessors data to NICS (e.g., gaps in processes, disparate processes among law 
enforcement, prosecution, and courts, and lack of training), and focused on opportunities 
for prohibited firearm possessor reporting in the misdemeanor domestic violence and 
Orders of Protection processes. He stressed that when there is an opportunity to get the 
data, it should be taken as early as possible. 

 Law enforcement needs to collect specific data points to identify an individual as 
a prohibited possessor during the arrest process.  

 Fingerprinting should be mandatory during the booking process for both 
misdemeanor and felony domestic violence offenses. Some offenders are not 
being booked and fingerprinted, resulting in no arrest record or associated history. 
Courts can help by ensuring the fingerprints are taken; however, training is 
essential to prevent illegible and rejected fingerprints. 

 Conditions of release become even more important when there are no available 
fingerprints. There is a time gap between an offender’s initial appearance to when 
the information is entered into a system and data is captured in a database.  
Conditions of release need to be recorded somehow so law enforcement can 
access the information and identify a prohibited possessor in any jurisdiction.  

 Relationships covered under Arizona statute are broader than in federal law, and 
some protected relationships are not listed or defined in federal law. As a result, 
some prohibited possessors are not prohibited possessors outside of Arizona. 
NICS requires a specific relationship between the victim and offender, but the 
information is not collected in any system. Judges should capture the relationship 
information on the sentencing order to help identify prohibited possessors under 
federal law. 

 Issued Orders of Protection that are entered into the Court Protective Order 
Repository (CPOR) might not yet have been served onto the individual, but NICS 
requires the Orders of Protection to be served before the data is submitted. During 
this time, law enforcement should be able to access Orders of Protection and 
download an electronic version that could be served (per the victim’s choice).  

 
Members agreed that the relationships listed under federal and state statutes should align 
and be consistent, and fingerprinting should be mandatory for all domestic violence 
offenders. Members also supported recording conditions of release for prohibited 
possessors while ensuring access for law enforcement and making Orders of Protection 
available to law enforcement. Several questions were raised on how these changes could 
be realized. The presenters were invited to return at the next CIDVC meeting.  

 
Mr. Peoples inquired whether a court would be willing to pilot an electronic version of 
the Order of Protection, and he would research available funding grants. Judge Wyatt 
Palmer from Graham County volunteered his justice court. 

 
B. Maricopa Association of Government (MAG) Protocol Evaluation Project: 

Informational Video on Orders of Protection for Law Enforcement 
Amy St. Peter, MAG Human Services and special projects manager, and Chief Steven 
Campbell, El Mirage Police Department, presented “Orders of Protection: A Tool For 
Safety,” an informational law enforcement training video that was produced in 

Page 4 of 33



Draft Minutes from the February 10, 2015 Meeting  3 

collaboration with the Governor’s Office for Children, Youth, and Families. The video 
promotes a more compassionate approach by law enforcement, depicts Orders of 
Protection as a useful tool to enhance the safety of the community and law enforcement, 
and allow patterns of abuse to be documented so law enforcement can make arrests and 
be proactive in assisting victims of domestic violence.  

 
C. Legislative Update 
Kay Radwanski reviewed bills of interest to CIDVC that were introduced in the current 
legislative session. Members may contact Amy Love, AOC legislative liaison, directly 
with any additional questions.   

 
HB2294: courts; approved screening, treatment facility: Would expand the list of alcohol, 
drug screening, and domestic violence treatment program facilities to those approved by 
the U.S. Department of Veterans’ Affairs to save on resources.  
 
HB2553: human trafficking victim; vacating conviction: Would vacate a person’s 
conviction of prostitution if it was committed as a direct result of being a victim of 
human trafficking. If the bill moves forward, it will be subject to several amendments.  
 
HB2637: interference; judicial proceeding; monitoring; classification: Would allow the 
court to mandate electronic monitoring and obtain a fee if the person is convicted of 
interference. The bill was introduced yesterday. 
 
HB2640: dependency; households; domestic violence: Would require the members of a 
child’s household to be screened for domestic violence by a Department of Child Safety 
(DCS) investigator before a child is returned to the child’s home.  
 
SB1035: domestic violence treatment programs; providers: Would allow a court to 
approve a domestic violence offender treatment program for misdemeanor offenders in 
addition to facilities approved by a probation department or the Department of Health 
Services. If the bill is approved, it will be subject to rules adopted by the Arizona 
Supreme Court.  
 
SB1064: service of process; regulation: Would prescribe rules for alternative and 
substitute service of process. If the bill moves forward, it will be amended to apply only 
to photo enforcement notices of violation because it could be problematic for victims of 
domestic violence.  
 
SB1314: domestic violence; arrest; predominant aggressor: Would allow a peace officer 
to arrest only the predominant aggressor in a domestic violence situation. The bill did 
pass unanimously in the Senate Judiciary committee but is also assigned to a second 
committee. 
 
SB1048: vexatious litigants; fees; costs; designation: Would prohibit a court from 
granting a waiver of court fees or costs for vexatious litigants. The bill is moving forward 
but will be subject to an amendment excluding family law cases.  

Page 5 of 33



Draft Minutes from the February 10, 2015 Meeting  4 

D. Rule 28 Petitions—ARPOP  
Ms. Radwanski reviewed current rule petitions affecting the Arizona Rules of Protective 
Order Procedure (ARPOP). The deadline to submit comments is May 20, 2015. The 
Supreme Court will meet in late August or early September to review and decide on all 
rule petitions that have been filed.  
 
R-15-0010 was filed by CIDVC to amend the ARPOP so the rules are more readable to 
self-represented litigants in keeping with Advancing Justice Together. CIDVC will have 
until June 20, 2015, to file a response or an amended petition to any comments received.  
 
R-15-0016 seeks the repeal of current Rule 6(E)(4)(e)(2) regarding the requirement that a 
judicial officer ask a plaintiff about the defendant's use or access to weapons for an 
Injunction Against Harassment. Ms. Radwanski sought feedback from CIDVC on 
whether to file a formal comment. The ARPOP Workgroup (Judge Carol Scott Berry, 
Gloria Full, Patricia Madsen, Shannon Rich, Judge Patricia Trebesch, and Tracey 
Wilkinson) will meet to draft a comment and present at the next CIDVC meeting. 

 
E. Case Law Update / Bench Briefing Update 
Case Law Update: Ms. Radwanski discussed two opinions that have been issued recently 
by Arizona courts relating to domestic violence.  

 
The Arizona Court of Appeals, Division I, issued an opinion in Michaelson v. Garr in 
May 2014 that affirmed the superior court’s decision to continue the Order of Protection 
after a contested hearing. The defendant appealed and contended that the court did not 
state a basis for continuing the order and the portion of the order preventing him from 
possessing a weapon violated federal law. The appellate court found that the court 
properly considered a partially illegible email as proof that Garr violated the ex parte 
order because the email clearly displayed his name, email address, and the date sent. The 
appellate court also found that the court did not err in continuing the firearm prohibition 
based on state law. 
 
In December 2014, the Arizona Supreme Court issued an opinion in State v. Ketchner 
that affirmed Ketchner’s convictions and sentences on three counts of aggravated assault 
and one count of attempted first-degree murder, but reversed the felony murder and 
burglary convictions and sentences because the sociologist’s expert testimony about 
separation violence, lethality factors, and characteristics common to domestic abusers 
was inadmissible profile evidence, and the error was not harmless. The case is remanded 
to the superior court for a new trial on the felony murder and burglary charges.  

  
Bench Briefing Update: Ms. Radwanski reported that Bench Briefing 3: Firearms, 
Domestic Violence, and Protective Orders, was just released. Bench Briefing 4: 
Conducting Ex Parte Protective Order Hearings will launch in April, and Bench Briefing 
5: Relief—What Can Be Ordered? has been recorded. She also noted that judges and 
court staff can earn 30 minutes of COJET when viewing two Bench Briefing videos. 

 
  

Page 6 of 33



Draft Minutes from the February 10, 2015 Meeting  5 

F. Introduction – Strategic Planning 
Judge Million discussed setting direction and priorities for the committee for the 
upcoming year that are consistent with CIDVC’s expertise and purpose. After 
considering several issues to address, members agreed to form three new workgroups. 

 
1. Judicial Conference Workgroup: All CIDVC judges will work together to 

identify potential speakers and propose domestic violence sessions for the 
annual Judicial Conference.  
 

2. Orders, Enforcement, and Access Workgroup: Will discuss electronic Orders 
of Protection, using remote video access for protective order petitions (e.g., 
for hospital patients, domestic violence shelters), enforcing Orders of 
Protection, addressing conflicting orders, and reporting prohibited possessors 
of firearms to NICS, including conditions of release and transmitting issued 
Orders of Protection.  
 
Chair: Judge Carol Scott Berry 
Workgroup members: Judge Keith Barth, Ellen Brown, Chief Steven 
Campbell, Patricia George, Patricia Madsen, Jeffrey Newnum, Judge Wyatt 
Palmer, Marla Randall, Shannon Rich, Rebecca Strickland, Tracey Wilkinson 
  

3. Training and Education Workgroup: Will discuss expanding video bench 
briefings to a broader audience, developing an expert panel, sponsoring 
events, providing outreach to new judges (a list of new justices of the peace 
and magistrates should be compiled), and informing judges about changes in 
case law, court rules, and legislation. 
 
Chair: Judge Keith Barth 
Workgroup members: Judge Carol Scott Berry, Carla Boatner, Ellen Brown, 
Lynn Fazz, Anna Harper-Guerrero, Judge Statia Hendrix, Dana Martinez, 
Shannon Rich 
 

Ms. Radwanski will email action items to each workgroup.  
 
III. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Good of the Order/Call to the Public  
During the Good of the Order/Call to the Public, Karen Duckworth-Barnes 
addressed the committee. 
 

B. Next Committee Meeting Date 
May 12, 2015; 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 
State Courts Building, Room 119A/B 
1501 W. Washington Street, Phoenix, AZ 85007 

 
The meeting adjourned at 1:18 p.m. 

Page 7 of 33



Page 8 of 33



COMMITTEE ON THE IMPACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND THE COURTS 
 

Meeting Date: 
 
May 12, 2015 

Type of Action 
Requested: 
 

 Formal Action/Request 
 

 Information Only 
 

 Other 

Subject: 
 
Presentation from Emerge! 
Center Against Domestic Abuse 
on creating accessbility for 
survivors of abuse who are deaf. 

 
From:  Anna Harper-Guerrero 
 
Presenter:  Anna Harper-Guerrero 
 
Description of Presentation:  Overview of Pima County's project and collaboration with the deaf 

community to ensure that services and information are accessible for survivors of abuse who are deaf. 
 
Recommended Motion:  N/A 

Page 9 of 33



Page 10 of 33



COMMITTEE ON THE IMPACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND THE COURTS 

Meeting Date: 

May 12, 2015 

Type of Action 
Requested: 

Formal Action/Request 

Information Only 

Other 

Subject: 

Legislative Report; SB1035:  
Domestic Violence Offender 
Treatment Programs 

From:  Kay Radwanski 

Presenter:  Kay Radwanski 

Description of Presentation:  This year's legislative session has ended, and a final report on 

domestic violence-related legislation will be presented. SB1035, which has been signed into law, 
authorizes courts to approve domestic violence offender treatment programs, subject to rules created by 
the Arizona Supreme Court. Kay will discuss the process for how those rules will be developed. SB1035 
takes effect December 31, 2015. 

Recommended Motion:  Information only. 

Page 11 of 33



CIDVC
52nd Legislature - 1st Regular Session, 2015 Friday, May 1 2015 4:22 PM

Bill summaries and histories copyright 2015 Arizona Capitol Reports, L.L.C.

Posted Calendars and Committee Hearings

No hearings, calendars, or amendments posted.

Domestic Violence

Bill Summaries

H2164: RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 

The list of factors a judicial officer must take into account in determining the method of release or
amount of bail for any person charged with a public offense is expanded to include whether the
accused has prior convictions for a "serious offense" or "violent or aggravated felony" (defined in the
criminal code), any other evidence that the accused poses a danger to others in the community, and
the results of a risk or lethality assessment in a domestic violence charge. AS SIGNED BY GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Rep. Borrelli 

 

H2164 Daily History  Date Action

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 3/30 signed by governor. Chap. 100, Laws 2015. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 3/24 passed Senate 28-0; ready for governor. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 3/17 from Senate rules okay. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 3/16 to Senate consent calendar. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 3/12 from Senate jud do pass. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 2/17 referred to Senate jud. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 2/16 passed House 57-0; ready for Senate. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 2/12 House COW approved with floor amend #4176. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 2/9 from House rules okay. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 2/4 from House jud do pass. 

RELEASE; BAILABLE OFFENSES; EVIDENCE 1/22 referred to House jud. 

H2294: COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT
FACILITIES 

The list of alcohol or other drug screening facilities or domestic violence treatment program facilities
that a judge must order a person convicted of specified offenses to complete is expanded to include
facilities approved by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. AS SIGNED BY GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Rep. E. Farnsworth 

 

H2294 Daily History  Date Action

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 3/26 signed by governor. Chap. 73, Laws 2015. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 3/23 passed Senate 28-0; ready for governor. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 3/17 from Senate rules okay. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 3/16 to Senate consent calendar. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 3/4 from Senate pub-mil-tech do pass. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 2/23 referred to Senate pub-mil-tech. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 2/19 passed House 57-0; ready for Senate. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 2/16 from House rules okay. To House consent calendar. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 2/11 from House jud do pass. 

COURTS; APPROVED SCREENING, TREATMENT FACILITIES 1/27 referred to House jud. 

Page 12 of 33

javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=H2164',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24773',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=H2164',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48055',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47425',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4176
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=H2294',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24792',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=H2294',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47989',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26062',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26062',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47491',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);


H2418: SHELTER PROGRAMS; REPORT; SUBMISSION DATE 

The deadline for the Department of Economic Security to file an annual report with the Governor
and the Legislature on shelters for domestic violence victims is moved to November 1, from
October 1.

First sponsor: Rep. Stevens 

 

H2418 Daily History  Date Action

SHELTER PROGRAMS; REPORT; SUBMISSION DATE 2/26 referred to Senate rules only. 

SHELTER PROGRAMS; REPORT; SUBMISSION DATE 2/25 passed House 38-21; ready for Senate. 

SHELTER PROGRAMS; REPORT; SUBMISSION DATE 2/24 from House rules okay. House COW approved. 

SHELTER PROGRAMS; REPORT; SUBMISSION DATE 2/17 from House child-fam do pass. 

SHELTER PROGRAMS; REPORT; SUBMISSION DATE 1/29 referred to House child-fam. 

H2553: SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION (HUMAN
TRAFFICKING VICTIM; VACATING CONVICTION) 

A person convicted of prostitution that was committed prior to July 24, 2014 may apply to the court
that pronounced sentence to vacate the person’s conviction. The court is required to grant the
application and vacate the conviction if the court finds by clear and convincing evidence that the
person’s participation in the offense was a direct result of being a victim of sex trafficking. A conviction
vacated does not qualify as a historical prior and cannot be alleged for sentencing repetitive offenders.
Except on an application for employment that requires a fingerprint clearance card, a person whose
conviction is vacated may in all instances state that the person has never been arrested for, charged
with or convicted of the crime that is the subject of the conviction. AS SIGNED BY GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Rep. Steele 
Others: Rep. Ackerley, Rep. J. Allen, Rep. Andrade, Rep. Benally, Rep. Bolding, Rep. Bowers, Rep. Boyer, Sen.
Bradley, Rep. Brophy McGee, Rep. Cardenas, Rep. Carter, Rep. Clark, Rep. Coleman, Rep. Espinoza, Rep. Fann, Sen.
Farley, Rep. Fernandez, Rep. Friese, Rep. Gabaldon, Rep. Gonzales, Rep. Gray, Rep. Hale, Sen. Hobbs, Rep.
Lawrence, Rep. Lovas, Rep. Mach, Rep. McCune Davis, Rep. Mendez, Rep. Meyer, Sen. Miranda, Rep. Mitchell, Rep.
Norgaard, Rep. Otondo, Sen. Pancrazi, Rep. Pratt, Sen. Quezada, Rep. Rios, Rep. Robson, Rep. Saldate, Rep.
Sherwood, Sen. Shooter, Rep. Shope, Rep. Thorpe, Rep. Velasquez, Rep. Wheeler 

 

H2553 Daily History  Date Action

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 4/6 signed by governor. Chap. 219, Laws 2015. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 4/1 House concurred in Senate amendments and passed on
final reading 59-0; ready for governor. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 3/31 passed Senate 29-0; ready for House action on Senate
amendments. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 3/30 Senate COW approved with the rules tech amendment. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 3/25 from Senate rules with a technical amendment. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 3/23 from Senate jud do pass. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 3/19 Senate jud do pass; report awaited. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 3/4 referred to Senate jud. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 3/3 passed House 59-0; ready for Senate. 

SEX TRAFFICKING; VACATING CONVICTION 2/26 House COW approved with amend #4308 and floor
amend #4563. NOTE SHORT TITLE CHANGE. 

HUMAN TRAFFICKING VICTIM; VACATING CONVICTION 2/25 from House rules okay. 

HUMAN TRAFFICKING VICTIM; VACATING CONVICTION 2/18 from House jud with amend #4308. 

HUMAN TRAFFICKING VICTIM; VACATING CONVICTION 2/18 House jud amended; report awaited. 

HUMAN TRAFFICKING VICTIM; VACATING CONVICTION 2/11 referred to House jud. 

H2640: DEPENDENCY; HOUSEHOLDS; DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

Page 13 of 33

javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=H2418',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24837',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=H2418',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47602',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=H2553',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24836',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24762',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24763',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24766',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24770',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24772',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24774',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24775',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24776',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24776',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24777',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24781',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24782',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24783',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24785',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24789',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24790',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24791',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24791',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24848',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24849',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24795',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24796',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24798',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24800',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24801',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24806',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24806',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24810',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24811',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24812',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24814',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24816',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24818',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24819',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24821',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24821',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24822',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24823',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24826',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24827',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24828',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24830',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24831',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24832',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24832',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24833',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24834',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24838',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24841',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24844',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=H2553',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48357',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48265',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47690',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4308
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4563
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4308
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=H2640',550,750);


The Department of Child Safety is required to adopt rules regarding the return of a child after a
determination of dependency that include conducting a criminal background check of all members of the
household to which the child will be returned and all persons who have a dating or intimate relationship
with a member of the household and of a biological parent of the child whose parental rights have not
been terminated, and that if any criminal background check indicates that a person has been arrested
for, charged with or convicted of a felony offense that involved conduct that poses an imminent threat
of danger to the child, the child may not be returned if there is significant evidence that an imminent
threat to children cannot be mitigated by planning and action taken by the Dept in partnership with the
nonoffending parent, familial resources or providers. Factors that must be considered when determining
the existence of an imminent threat are specified. AS PASSED HOUSE.

First sponsor: Rep. Brophy McGee 
Others: Rep. Carter, Rep. Coleman, Rep. McCune Davis, Rep. Meyer 

 

H2640 Daily History  Date Action

DEPENDENCY; HOUSEHOLDS; DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 3/19 from Senate hel-hu ser with amend #4948. 

DEPENDENCY; HOUSEHOLDS; DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 3/16 referred to Senate hel-hu ser. 

DEPENDENCY; HOUSEHOLDS; DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 3/12 House COW approved with amend #4256 and floor amend 
#4872. Passed House 57-1; ready for Senate. 

DEPENDENCY; HOUSEHOLDS; DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 3/12 from House rules okay. 

DEPENDENCY; HOUSEHOLDS; DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 2/17 from House child-fam with amend #4256. 

DEPENDENCY; HOUSEHOLDS; DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 2/16 House child-fam amended; report awaited. 

DEPENDENCY; HOUSEHOLDS; DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 2/11 referred to House child-fam. 

S1035: DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS;
PROVIDERS 

The court is added to the list of entities that may approve a domestic violence offender treatment
program that judges must order a person convicted of a misdemeanor domestic violence offense to
complete. Effective January 1, 2016. AS SIGNED BY GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Sen. Ward 

 

S1035 Daily History  Date Action

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 4/6 signed by governor. Chap. 194, Laws 2015. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 3/31 passed House 55-5; ready for governor. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 3/26 House COW approved. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 3/25 retained on House COW calendar. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 3/19 from House rules okay. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 3/18 from House jud do pass. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 3/12 referred to House jud. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 3/6 passed Senate 28-0; ready for House. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 2/25 Senate COW approved with amend #4401. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 2/24 from Senate rules okay. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 2/23 from Senate jud with amend #4401. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 2/19 Senate jud amended; report awaited. 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE TREATMENT PROGRAMS; PROVIDERS 1/12 referred to Senate jud. 

S1295: FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 

At the time of sentencing a person convicted of specified felony offenses, the court may obtain and
record the defendant's two fingerprint biometric-based identifier in the court case file, in lieu of
permanently affixing the defendant's right index fingerprint to the document or order. AS SIGNED BY
GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Sen. Smith 

 

Page 14 of 33

javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24777',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24782',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24785',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24812',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24816',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=H2640',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4948
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4256
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4872
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47903',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4256
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=S1035',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24842',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=S1035',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48246',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47762',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4401
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4401
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=S1295',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24835',550,750);


S1295 Daily History  Date Action

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 4/1 signed by governor. Chap 160, Laws 2015. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 3/24 passed House 58-0; ready for governor. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 3/17 House COW approved. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 3/16 from House rules okay. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 3/11 from House jud do pass. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 3/2 referred to House jud. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 2/19 passed Senate 29-0; ready for House. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 2/17 from Senate rules okay. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 2/16 from Senate jud do pass. To Senate consent calendar. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 2/12 Senate jud do pass; report awaited. 

FINGERPRINTING; JUDGMENT OF GUILT; RECORDS 1/29 referred to Senate jud. 

S1425: SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 

In a civil action, a "sexual assault victim advocate" (defined) is prohibited from being examined as
to any communication made by the sexual assault victim to the advocate. Some exceptions. AS
PASSED HOUSE.

First sponsor: Sen. Hobbs 
Others: Sen. Miranda, Sen. Shooter 

 

S1425 Daily History  Date Action

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 4/3 House COW approved with floor amend #5211. Passed House 
58-0; ready for Senate action on House amendments. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 3/31 from House rules okay. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 3/18 from House jud do pass. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 3/12 referred to House jud. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 3/11 passed Senate 29-0; ready for House. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 2/24 from Senate rules okay. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 2/23 to Senate consent calendar. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 2/23 from Senate jud do pass. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 2/19 from Senate gov do pass. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT VICTIM ADVOCATE; PRIVILEGE 2/3 referred to Senate jud, gov. 

Family Law

Bill Summaries

H2296: ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 

The county attorney would have been permitted, instead of required, to prepare an adoption petition
and act as attorney without expense to a prospective adoptive parent on application of the person(s)
seeking adoption. If an adoption is made through a licensed adoption agency, the agency would have
been permitted, instead of required, to submit the prepared adoption petition to the county attorney.
The county attorney would have been required to make available to the public information about where
to obtain legal assistance in preparing an adoption petition. AS VETOED BY GOVERNOR. In his veto
message, the Governor expressed concern that this law could potentially reduce the number of
adoptions and encouraged the counties to look for other cost savings and efficiencies.

First sponsor: Rep. E. Farnsworth 

 

Page 15 of 33

javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=S1295',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48049',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47466',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=S1425',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24801',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24818',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24833',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=S1425',550,750);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=5211
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48510',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47861',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26065',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26065',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=H2296',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24792',550,750);


H2296 Daily History  Date Action

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 4/13 VETOED message. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 3/30 House concurred in Senate amendments and passed on final reading 
37-23; ready for governor. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 3/24 passed Senate 20-8; ready for House action on Senate amendments. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 3/23 Senate COW approved with floor amend #4994. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 3/17 stricken from Senate consent calendar by Yee. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 3/17 from Senate rules okay. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 3/16 to Senate consent calendar. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 3/4 from Senate hel-hu ser do pass. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 2/23 referred to Senate hel-hu ser. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 2/12 passed House 36-22; ready for Senate. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 2/11 House COW approved. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 2/9 from House rules okay. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 1/28 from House jud do pass. 

ADOPTION PETITION; COUNTY ATTORNEY 1/26 referred to House jud. 

H2519: RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 

The information that must be included in a parenting plan is expanded to include a procedure by which
proposed relocation of where a child resides with either parent may be mediated or resolved. If both
parents are entitled to joint legal decision-making or parenting time and both parents reside in Arizona,
at least 45 days' advance written notice, decreased from 60 days, must be provided to the other parent
before a parent may relocate a child outside the state or more than 100 miles. Unless otherwise ordered
by the court, if a child is relocated all parties must continue to comply with current court orders,
regardless of distance moved or notice required. The list of reasons that a parent with sole or joint legal
decision-making and primary residence of a child who is required to relocate in less than 45 days may
temporarily relocate with the child is expanded to include eviction of that parent or that parent’s
spouse. AS SIGNED BY GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Rep. Coleman 

 

H2519 Daily History  Date Action

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 4/10 signed by governor. Chap. 317, Laws 2015. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 4/2 passed Senate 29-0. House concurred in Senate amendments and
passed on final reading 58-0; ready for governor. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 4/2 Senate COW approved with floor amend #5195. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 4/1 from Senate rules okay. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 3/19 from Senate hel-hu ser do pass. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 3/11 referred to Senate hel-hu ser. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 3/10 passed House 31-28; ready for Senate. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 3/4 House COW approved with amend #4253. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 3/3 from House rules okay. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 2/17 from House child-fam with amend #4253. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 2/16 House child-fam amended; report awaited. 

RELOCATION OF CHILD; PARENTING PLANS 1/29 referred to House child-fam. 

S1048: VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 

A party is permitted to make an amended request for the superior court to designate a pro se litigant a
vexatious litigant if specified conditions are met. The court is prohibited from granting a waiver of
court fees or costs for civil actions filed by a pro se litigant who has previously been declared a
vexatious litigant by any court, except for cases of dissolution of marriage, legal separation,
annulment or establishment, enforcement or modification of child support. Effective January 1, 2016.
AS SIGNED BY GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Sen. Kavanagh 

 

Page 16 of 33

javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=H2296',550,750);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/media/archives/documents/52nd-1st-Regular/Governor Messages/H2296.pdf
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48173',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48033',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4994
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47371',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=H2519',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24785',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=H2519',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48475',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48504',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=5195
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47846',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4253
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4253
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=S1048',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24803',550,750);


S1048 Daily History  Date Action

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 3/26 signed by governor. Chap. 61, Laws 2015. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 3/19 passed House 55-0; ready for governor. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 3/17 House COW approved. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 3/16 from House rules okay. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 3/11 from House jud do pass. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 3/3 referred to House jud. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 2/16 passed Senate 28-0; ready for House. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 2/12 Senate COW approved with amend #4005. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 2/5 retained on Senate COW calendar. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 1/27 from Senate rules okay. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 1/22 from Senate jud with amend #4005. 

VEXATIOUS LITIGANTS; FEES; COSTS; DESIGNATION 1/13 referred to Senate jud. 

S1115: DELEGATION OF POWERS; PARENT; CUSTODIAN 

A parent or custodian of a child is permitted to delegate to an attorney-in-fact any of the powers
regarding the care and custody of the child, with some exceptions, by a properly executed power of
attorney. Requirements for the power of attorney to delegate these powers are established. A
delegation of powers cannot be effective for a period over one year, except if a parent is on active
duty service in the U.S. Armed Forces. The parent or custodian may revoke the power of attorney at
any time.

First sponsor: Sen. Ward 
Others: Sen. S. Allen 

 

S1115 Daily History  Date Action

DELEGATION OF POWERS; PARENT; CUSTODIAN 2/19 from Senate hel-hu ser do pass. 

DELEGATION OF POWERS; PARENT; CUSTODIAN 2/12 referred to Senate hel-hu ser. 

S1226: PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION;
PETITION 

If necessary, the county attorney of the county in which a prospective adoptive parent resides is
authorized to prepare a petition to terminate the parent-child relationship without expense to the
prospective adoptive parent.

First sponsor: Sen. Pancrazi 

 

S1226 Daily History  Date Action

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 3/25 from House rules okay. House COW approved with
amend #4885. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 3/16 from House child-fam with amend #4885. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 3/10 referred to House child-fam. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 3/4 passed Senate 30-0; ready for House. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 2/25 Senate COW approved. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 2/24 stricken from Senate consent calendar by Pancrazi. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 2/24 from Senate rules okay. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 2/23 to Senate consent calendar. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 2/23 from Senate jud do pass. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 2/19 Senate jud do pass; report awaited. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 2/12 from Senate hel-hu ser do pass. 

PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIP; TERMINATION; PETITION 1/27 referred to Senate jud, hel-hu ser. 

S1313: UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 

Page 17 of 33

javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=S1048',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47961',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47394',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4005
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4005
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=S1115',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24842',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24764',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=S1115',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=S1226',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24823',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=S1226',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4885
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4885
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47726',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=S1313',550,750);


Various changes to statutes related to spousal and child support in order to implement the Uniform
Interstate Family Support Act of 2008 in compliance with federal law. The superior court is the tribunal
of this state and the Department of Economic Security is the support enforcement agency of this state.
A tribunal of this state is required to apply specified state statutes to a support proceeding that involves
a foreign support order, a foreign tribunal, or an obligee, obligor or child residing in a foreign country.
Statutes regulating support orders from other states are expanded to include other countries. The
support enforcement agency is required to provide services to a petitioner that requests services
through a central authority of a foreign country, and is permitted to provide services to a petitioner who
is an individual not residing in a state. Adds a new article to the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act
regulating support proceedings under convention. Severability clause. [Capitol Reports Note: Legislative
staff indicate that failure to implement these changes may result in the state’s loss of Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families grant funding.] AS SIGNED BY GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Sen. Driggs 
Others: Sen. Worsley 

 

S1313 Daily History  Date Action

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 4/10 signed by governor. Chap. 253, Laws 2015. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 4/3 passed House 56-0; ready for governor. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 3/25 from House rules okay. House COW approved. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 3/16 from House child-fam do pass. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 3/9 referred to House child-fam. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 3/3 passed Senate 30-0; ready for House. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 2/26 Senate COW approved with amend #4391, floor amend #4553 and 
#4548, a substitute for the rules tech amendment. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 2/24 from Senate rules with a technical amendment. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 2/23 from Senate jud with amend #4391. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 2/19 Senate jud amended; report awaited. 

UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT 2/2 referred to Senate jud. 

S1439: JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS;
COMPLAINTS 

The Board of Psychologist Examiners is no longer prohibited from considering a complaint against a
judicially appointed psychologist arising out of a court ordered evaluation, treatment or psychoeducation
of a person to present a charge of unprofessional conduct. A claim of unprofessional conduct brought on
or after the effective date of this legislation against a psychologist arising out of court-ordered services
is required to be independently reviewed by three members of the Board, including a public member.
Each of those Board members is required to independently provide the Board's Executive Director with a
recommendation indicating whether the member believes there is merit to open an investigation. If one
or more members determine that there is merit, an investigation must be opened and must follow the
regular complaint process. The Board cannot consider a complaint for administrative action if the
complaint is filed against a Board member or Board staff if the complaint relates to the person's
performance of Board duties. AS SIGNED BY GOVERNOR.

First sponsor: Sen. Smith 

 

Page 18 of 33

javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24851',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24845',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=S1313',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48524',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26037',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47669',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4391
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4553
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4548
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4391
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=S1439',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24835',550,750);


S1439 Daily History  Date Action

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 4/1 signed by governor. Chap 168, Laws 2015. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 3/26 Senate concurred in House amendments and passed on
final reading 28-1; ready for governor. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 3/24 passed House 56-0; ready for Senate action on House
amendments. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 3/24 House COW approved with amend #4921 and floor
amend #5018. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 3/23 from House rules okay. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 3/18 from House jud with amend #4921. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 3/18 House jud amended; report awaited. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 3/10 referred to House jud. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 3/4 passed Senate 30-0; ready for House. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 2/17 from Senate rules okay. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 2/16 from Senate jud do pass. To Senate consent calendar. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 2/12 Senate jud do pass; report awaited. From Senate hel-hu
ser do pass. 

JUDICIALLY APPOINTED PSYCHOLOGISTS; COMPLAINTS 2/3 referred to Senate jud, hel-hu ser. 

SCR1002: SUPREME COURT; PROCEDURAL RULES;
AMENDMENT 

The 2016 general election ballot is to carry the question of whether to amend the state Constitution
to make state Supreme Court rules relative to all procedural matters in any court subject to
amendment by the Legislature by joint resolution or by the people by initiative or referendum.

First sponsor: Sen. Kavanagh 

 

SCR1002 Daily History  Date Action

SUPREME COURT; PROCEDURAL RULES; AMENDMENT 2/18 Senate gov held. 

SUPREME COURT; PROCEDURAL RULES; AMENDMENT 2/11 referred to Senate gov. 

Page 19 of 33

javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=S1439',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48165',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=48089',550,600);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4921
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=5018
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26049',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
http://www.azcapitolreports.com/viewhtm.cfm?type=amendments&typecol=amendnumber&pk=amendid&id=4921
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26047',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/pavotes.cfm?popup=true&id=47740',550,600);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26057',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26068',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26064',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('histories.cfm?bill=SCR1002',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('members.cfm?id=24803',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/histories.cfm?bill=SCR1002',550,750);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26065',550,550);
javascript:openNewWindow('/committees.cfm?popup=true&id=26065',550,550);


 

 - i - 
 

 
 

 
Senate Engrossed

 
 
 
State of Arizona 
Senate 
Fifty-second Legislature 
First Regular Session 
2015 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 194 
 

SENATE BILL 1035 
 

 
AN ACT 

 
AMENDING SECTION 13-3601.01, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES; RELATING TO DOMESTIC 
VIOLENCE. 
 
 

(TEXT OF BILL BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE) 
 

Page 20 of 33



S.B. 1035 
 
 
 
 

 - 1 - 

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Arizona: 1 
Section 1.  Section 13-3601.01, Arizona Revised Statutes, is amended to 2 

read: 3 
13-3601.01.  Domestic violence; treatment; definition 4 
A.  The judge shall order a person who is convicted of a misdemeanor 5 

domestic violence offense to complete a domestic violence offender treatment 6 
program that is provided by a facility approved by the COURT PURSUANT TO 7 
RULES ADOPTED BY THE SUPREME COURT, THE department of health services or a 8 
probation department.  If a person has previously been ordered to complete a 9 
domestic violence offender treatment program pursuant to this section, the 10 
judge shall order the person to complete a domestic violence offender 11 
treatment program unless the judge deems that alternative sanctions are more 12 
appropriate.  The department of health services shall adopt and enforce 13 
guidelines that establish standards for domestic violence offender treatment 14 
program approval. 15 

B.  On conviction of a misdemeanor domestic violence offense, if a 16 
person within a period of sixty months has previously been convicted of a 17 
violation of a domestic violence offense or is convicted of a misdemeanor 18 
domestic violence offense and has previously been convicted of an act in 19 
another state, a court of the United States or a tribal court that if 20 
committed in this state would be a domestic violence offense, the judge may 21 
order the person to be placed on supervised probation and the person may be 22 
incarcerated as a condition of probation. If the court orders supervised 23 
probation, the court may conduct an intake assessment when the person begins 24 
the term of probation and may conduct a discharge summary when the person is 25 
released from probation.  If the person is incarcerated and the court 26 
receives confirmation that the person is employed or is a student, the court, 27 
on pronouncement of any jail sentence, may provide in the sentence that the 28 
person, if the person is employed or is a student and can continue the 29 
person's employment or studies, may continue the employment or studies for 30 
not more than twelve hours a day nor more than five days a week.  The person 31 
shall spend the remaining day, days or parts of days in jail until the 32 
sentence is served and shall be allowed out of jail only long enough to 33 
complete the actual hours of employment or studies. 34 

C.  A person who is ordered to complete a domestic violence offender 35 
treatment program shall pay the cost of the program. 36 

D.  If a person is ordered to attend a domestic violence offender 37 
treatment program pursuant to this section, the program shall report to the 38 
court whether the person has attended the program and has successfully 39 
completed the program. 40 

Page 21 of 33



S.B. 1035 
 
 
 
 

 - 2 - 

E.  For the purposes of this section, prior convictions for misdemeanor 1 
domestic violence offenses apply to convictions for offenses that were 2 
committed on or after January 1, 1999. 3 

F.  For the purposes of this section, "domestic violence offense" means 4 
an offense involving domestic violence as defined in section 13-3601. 5 

Sec. 2.  Effective date 6 
This act is effective from and after December 31, 2015. 7 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY THE GOVERNOR APRIL 6, 2015. 
 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE APRIL 7, 2015. 

Page 22 of 33



COMMITTEE ON THE IMPACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND THE COURTS 

Meeting Date: 

May 12, 2015 

Type of Action 
Requested: 

Formal Action/Request 

Information Only 

Other 

Subject: 

Comment to Rule 28 Petitions 

From:  Kay Radwanski 

Presenter:  Judge Wendy Million 

Description of Presentation:  During the current court rules cycle, two petitions affecting the 

Arizona Rules of Protective Order Procedure (ARPOP) have been filed. The first, R-15-0010, was filed by 
CIDVC. The purpose of the proposed changes is to restyle, simplify, and clarify the ARPOP rules. One 
comment--supporting amendments to ARPOP's evidence rules--has been received to date. Another 
petition-R-15-0016--requests that the Supreme Court repeal Rule 6(E)(4)(e)(2) regarding firearms and 
Injunctions Against Harassment. The ARPOP Workgroup has met and has prepared a comment in 
opposition to R-15-0016. Judge Million is seeking the committee's approval of the draft comment and 
authorization for her to file the comment on CIDVC's behalf.  

Recommended Motion:  Approve the comment in opposition to R-15-0016 and authorize Judge 

Wendy Million to file it on CIDVC's behalf no later than May 20, 2015. 

Page 23 of 33



Samuel A. Thumma 
Co-Chair, Advisory Committee on Rules of Evidence 
Judge, Arizona Court of Appeals 
1501 West Washington 
Phoenix, AZ 85007-3329 
Telephone: (602) 542-3492 
Facsimile: (602) 542-4833 
State Bar of Arizona No. 14679 
 
Mark W. Armstrong 
Co-Chair, Advisory Committee on Rules of Evidence 
Staff Attorney, Arizona Supreme Court 
Superior Court Judge (Ret.) 
1501 West Washington, Ste 415 
Phoenix, AZ 85007-3329 
Telephone: (602) 452-3387 
Facsimile: (602) 452-3482 
State Bar of Arizona No. 4945 
 

IN THE SUPREME COURT 

 STATE OF ARIZONA 

 

IN THE MATTER OF: 
 
PETITION TO AMEND THE 
ARIZONA RULES OF PROTECTIVE 
ORDER PROCEDURE 
 
_______________________________       

  ) 
  ) 
  ) 
  ) 
  ) 
  )   

 Supreme Court No. R-15-0010 

 
Comment to Petition to Amend the 

Arizona Rules of Protective Order 

Procedure 

 

     
  
 The Arizona Supreme Court’s Advisory Committee on Rules of Evidence, 

by and through its co-chairs, hereby comments in support of proposed Rule 36, 

Arizona Rules of Protective Order Procedure, and the comment thereto.  The 

committee takes no position on the remainder of amendments proposed in the subject 

petition.  

Page 24 of 33



 2 

              The proposed amendment of Rule 36 was requested by the Advisory 

Committee on Rules of Evidence.  It adopts the same evidentiary standard used in 

the Arizona Rules of Family Law Procedure when strict compliance with the 

Arizona Rules of Evidence is not demanded.  See Ariz. R. Fam. Law P. 2(B)(2).  The 

evidentiary standards should be consistent for two reasons:  (1) the family court 

issues protective orders in appropriate cases; and (2) protective orders issued by 

limited jurisdiction courts are often consolidated with family court cases pursuant to 

A.R.S. § 13-3602(P) (2013 Supp.). 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this _____ day of April, 2015. 

 
 
      __________________________ 
      Samuel A. Thumma 
                                                              Judge, Arizona Court of Appeals 

Arizona Court of Appeals - Division One 
                                                              1501 West Washington 
                                                              Phoenix, AZ 85007-3329 

 
                                                              and 
  
                                                              __________________________ 
                                                              Mark W. Armstrong 

Staff Attorney, Arizona Supreme Court 
                                                              Superior Court Judge (Ret.) 
                                                              1501 West Washington, Ste 415 
                                                              Phoenix, AZ 85007-3329 

Page 25 of 33



 

1 
 

Honorable Wendy Million 
Tucson City Court 
103 E. Alameda 
Tucson, AZ  85701 
Telephone:  (520) 791-3260 
Chair, Committee on the Impact  

of Domestic Violence and the Courts 
 
 

IN THE SUPREME COURT 

STATE OF ARIZONA 

 
In the Matter of:     )  Supreme Court No. R-15-0016 
       )  
Petition to Repeal Rule 6(E)(4)(e)(2),   )  Comment to Petition to Repeal 
Arizona Rules of Protective Order Procedure ) Rule 6(E)(4)(e)(2) of the Arizona 
       ) Rules of Protective Order Procedure 
      )   

 
 
 The Committee on the Impact of Domestic Violence and the Courts (CIDVC)  

has authorized the Honorable Wendy A. Million, CIDVC chair, to file this comment to Petition 

No. R-15-0016 on the committee’s behalf. 

DISCUSSION 

 Rule 6(E)(4)(e)(2), Rules of Protective Order Procedure, has withstood two prior attacks 

(R-09-0045 and R-12-0007) on Second Amendment grounds. The most recent iteration of this 

rule was adopted by the Supreme Court in 2012 and reads: 

Rule 6(E)(4) --  

e. Other Relief: 

1. The judicial officer may grant relief necessary for the protection of the 

alleged victim and other specifically designated persons proper under the 

circumstances. A.R.S. § 12-1809(F)(3). 

 

Page 26 of 33



 

2 
 

2. The judicial officer shall ask the plaintiff about the defendant's use of or 

access to weapons or firearms. If necessary to protect the plaintiff or other 

specifically designated person, the judicial officer may prohibit the 

defendant from possessing, purchasing or receiving firearms and 

ammunition for the duration of the Injunction Against Harassment. 

 A.R.S. § 12-1809(F)(3) authorizes a judicial officer to “[g]rant relief necessary for the 

protection of the alleged victim and other specifically designated persons proper under the 

circumstances.”  Under this statutory authority, a judicial officer has the discretion to prohibit a 

defendant from possessing firearms for the protection of the plaintiff and other protected persons. 

Petition R-15-0016 now brings a challenge on Fourth Amendment grounds, relying on 

the Supreme Court’s decision in State of Arizona v. Serna, 235 Ariz. 270 (2014). 

The Supreme Court has set clearly defined limitations on the application of the holding in 

Serna.  “Our holding governs only those circumstances in which the police wish to search a 

person with whom they are engaged in a consensual encounter.” Serna at 276. 

With the narrow parameters established by the Supreme Court, Serna is inapplicable to 

Injunctions Against Harassment. The issuance of a civil Injunction Against Harassment by an 

Arizona judicial officer does not involve a search and seizure of weapons by a judicial officer. 

Moreover, no part of the Injunction Against Harassment operates as a warrant for the search for 

or seizure of weapons by law enforcement. 

A.R.S. § 12-1809(F)(3) allows a judicial officer to grant relief necessary for the 

protection of the plaintiff or other protected persons. A judicial officer, in weighing the 

plaintiff’s safety, can make reasonable and necessary provisions to safeguard the plaintiff. If a 

judicial officer orders the defendant to possess no firearms for the duration of the Injunction 

Page 27 of 33



 

3 
 

Against Harassment, the judicial officer also will enter orders for the defendant to surrender the 

firearms to a law enforcement agency within a specified period of time. Defendant also has a 

right to contest the issuance of the Injunction Against Harassment. If a contested hearing request 

is conducted, the defendant may also raise the issue of the firearms prohibition at that time. 

CONCLUSION 

 For the reasons stated above, CIDVC respectfully asks the Court to deny Petition R-15-

0016. 

Respectfully submitted this ___ day of May, 2015. 

 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Hon. Wendy A. Million 
      Magistrate, Tucson City Court  
       
 
cc: Victoria Timm, Petitioner 
 Via e-mail at v.timm@mt2014.com 
 

Page 28 of 33

v.timm@mt2014.com
v.timm@mt2014.com


COMMITTEE ON THE IMPACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND THE COURTS 

Meeting Date: 

May 12, 2015 

Type of Action 
Requested: 

Formal Action/Request 

Information Only 

Other 

Subject: 

Report:  NICS Task Force 
Meeting 

From:  Kay Radwanski 

Presenter:  Chief Steven Campbell, Kay Radwanski 

Description of Presentation:  The presenters were panelists at the April 14, 2015, meeting of the 

NICS Task Force, which was established by the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC). ACJC is 
working on improving the flow of information into the National Instant Criminal Background Check System 
(NICS). The presenters will report on the discussion from the task force meeting, which focused on 
conditions of release and the protective order process. 

Recommended Motion:  Information only. 

Page 29 of 33



Page 30 of 33



COMMITTEE ON THE IMPACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND THE COURTS 
 

Meeting Date: 
 
May 12, 2015 

Type of Action 
Requested: 
 

 Formal Action/Request 
 

 Information Only 
 

 Other 

Subject: 
 
Update:  Bench Briefings 

 
From:  Kay Radwanski 
 
Presenter:  Judge Wendy Million, Kay Radwanski 
 
Description of Presentation:  The bench briefing project continues with the distribution of Bench 

Briefing 4:  Conducting Ex Parte Hearings in April. The presenters will report on the status of the project. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Information only. 

Page 31 of 33



Page 32 of 33



COMMITTEE ON THE IMPACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND THE COURTS 
 

Meeting Date: 
 
May 12, 2015 

Type of Action 
Requested: 
 

 Formal Action/Request 
 

 Information Only 
 

 Other 

Subject: 
 
Workgroup Reports 

 
From:  Kay Radwanski 
 
Presenter:  Judge Carol Scott Berry, Judge Keith Barth 
 
Description of Presentation:  At the February 10, 2015, CIDVC meeting, two new workgroups 

were established. Judge Berry will discuss the project chosen by the Orders, Enforcement and Access 
Workgroup, which she is leading. Judge Barth will discuss the work being done by the Training and 
Education Workgroup, which he is leading. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Information only. 

Page 33 of 33


	1. Agenda
	2. Draft Minutes from 02/10/2015
	3. Emerge! Center Against Domestic Abuse
	4. Legislative Report and SB1035
	4b. Legislative Report
	4c. SB1035

	5. Comment to Rule 28 Petitions
	5b. Committee on Rules of Evidence Comment to R-15-0010
	5c. CIDVC's Comment on R-15-0016

	6. NICS Task Force Report
	7. Bench Briefings Update
	8. Workgroup Reports


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




